
Page 1 of 2 
VISION: Expanding our world by celebrating creativity in San Diego 

PURPOSE: The City of San Diego Commission for Arts and Culture serves in an advisory capacity to the Mayor and City Council on promoting, 
encouraging and increasing support for the region's artistic and cultural assets, integrating arts and culture into community life and showcasing San 

Diego as an international tourist destination. 
Meeting will be live and recorded. PUBLIC COMMENT: Any member of the public may address the Commission on any subject in its area of 
responsibility on any matter not presently pending or previously discussed at the Commission. Pursuant to the provisions California Executive 
Order 29-20, Commission meetings will be held via teleconference until further notice. In lieu of in-person attendance, members of the public 
may submit their comments via a public comment webform, or they may join the meeting as a “webinar attendee” at the link provided in the 
Commission or Committee meeting website. For members of the public wishing to address the Commission under Public Comment via the 
webform prior to the meeting, instructions for word limitations and deadlines will be noted on the webform. Pursuant to open meeting laws, no 
discussion or action, other than a referral, shall be taken by the Committee on any issue brought forth under non-agenda public comment. As 
required by the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA), requests for agenda information to be made available in alternative formats, and any 
requests for disability-related modifications or accommodations required to facilitate meeting participation, including requests for alternatives 
to observing meetings and offering public comment as noted above, may be made by contacting the City Clerk at (619) 533-4000 or 
mailto:cityclerk@sandiego.gov. The City is committed to resolving accessibility requests swiftly in order to maximize accessibility. 

jje 

CITY OF SAN DIEGO | COMMISSION FOR ARTS AND CULTURE 
AGENDA 

Hyperlink to view meeting is forthcoming and will be available here
Friday, April 23, 2021 

8:30 a.m. – 10:30 a.m. 

8:30 a.m. Janet Poutré, Chair 

8:32 a.m. Janet Poutré, Chair 

8:42 a.m. Janet Poutré, Chair 

9:00 a.m. 

9:40 a.m. Ann Bossler, Committee 
Chair  

I. Call to Order & Statement of Purpose+Vision

II. Non-agenda Public Comment

III. Chair’s Reports
A. ACTION – March 26, 2021 Commission 

Meeting Minutes
B. ACTION – Fiscal Year 2022 Arts and 

Culture Programmatic Budget Distribution
C. Other Reports

IV. Presentations:
A. Poetry Out Loud Winner Kate Linggi
B. Jean Issacs, Former Artistic Director, San 

Diego Dance Theater
C. Reopening Update: D. Candis Paule, 

Member, Statewide Task Force for 
Reopening in the Arts Safely

V. Committee Reports
A. Policy & Funding Committee

1. Diversity, Equity, Inclusion (DEI) 
Update

2. ACTION - Fiscal Year 2022 
Organizational Support
Program/Creative Communities San 
Diego Request for Proposal Ranks

B. Public Art Committee - ACTION -
Intersection Mural Proposal from 
Downtown San Diego Partnership: We Are 
Cortez by Phoebe Cornog and Roxy Prima

Ben Meza, Committee 
Chair 

https://www.sandiego.gov/boards-and-commissions/public-comment
https://www.sandiego.gov/arts-culture/meetings
https://www.sandiego.gov/boards-and-commissions/public-comment
https://www.sandiego.gov/boards-and-commissions/public-comment
mailto:cityclerk@sandiego.gov
https://www.sandiego.gov/arts-culture/meetings


Page 2 of 2 
VISION: Expanding our world by celebrating creativity in San Diego 

PURPOSE: The City of San Diego Commission for Arts and Culture serves in an advisory capacity to the Mayor and City Council on promoting, 
encouraging and increasing support for the region's artistic and cultural assets, integrating arts and culture into community life and showcasing San 

Diego as an international tourist destination. 
Meeting will be live and recorded. PUBLIC COMMENT: Any member of the public may address the Commission on any subject in its area of 
responsibility on any matter not presently pending or previously discussed at the Commission. Pursuant to the provisions California Executive 
Order 29-20, Commission meetings will be held via teleconference until further notice. In lieu of in-person attendance, members of the public 
may submit their comments via a public comment webform, or they may join the meeting as a “webinar attendee” at the link provided in the 
Commission or Committee meeting website. For members of the public wishing to address the Commission under Public Comment via the 
webform prior to the meeting, instructions for word limitations and deadlines will be noted on the webform. Pursuant to open meeting laws, no 
discussion or action, other than a referral, shall be taken by the Committee on any issue brought forth under non-agenda public comment. As 
required by the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA), requests for agenda information to be made available in alternative formats, and any 
requests for disability-related modifications or accommodations required to facilitate meeting participation, including requests for alternatives 
to observing meetings and offering public comment as noted above, may be made by contacting the City Clerk at (619) 533-4000 or 
mailto:cityclerk@sandiego.gov. The City is committed to resolving accessibility requests swiftly in order to maximize accessibility. 

C. Advocacy & Outreach Committee Tyler Hewes, 
Committee Chair 

D. Commissioner Engagement Ad Hoc
Committee

Udoka Nwanna, Ad Hoc 
Committee Chair 

10:05 a.m. VI. Director’s Reports Jonathon Glus, 
Executive Director 

10:10 a.m. VII. New Business for Future Agendas Janet Poutré, Chair 

10:20 a.m. 

10:30 a.m. 

VIII. 

IX. 

Commissioner Speed-Round – What arts, culture 
and creative experiences have you had this month 
(who, what, when, where)? Adjourn 

Adjourn 

Janet Poutré, Chair 

Janet Poutré, Chair 

https://www.sandiego.gov/boards-and-commissions/public-comment
https://www.sandiego.gov/arts-culture/meetings
https://www.sandiego.gov/boards-and-commissions/public-comment
https://www.sandiego.gov/boards-and-commissions/public-comment
mailto:cityclerk@sandiego.gov


Page 1 of 2 
Minutes of Arts and Culture Commission Meeting, March 26, 2021 

City of San Diego Commission for Arts and Culture | Microsoft Teams Online Meeting 

MINUTES 

Friday, March 26, 2021 

Hyperlink to view full meeting available here 
closed caption (cc) available at bottom right of screen 

Commissioners Present 
Janet Poutré, Chair 
Vernon Franck, Vice Chair 
Ann Bossler 
Rebecca Smith 
Tyler Hewes 
Tracy Dezenzo 
Keith Opstad 
Dajahn Blevins  
Michael Brown 

Commissioners Absent 
Udoka Nwanna 
Doreen Schonbrun 
Gina M. Jackson  
Ben Meza 
Jason Whooper 

Staff Present 
Jonathon Glus 
Christine E. Jones 
Charles Miller 
Bell Reza 
Karla Centeno 
Lara Bullock 

I. Call to Order & Statement of Purpose Vision | View Here –Chair Janet Poutré
called the City of San Diego Commission for Arts and Culture online meeting
to order at 8:34a.m. Chair Poutré introduced herself, took roll call to confirm
Commissioner attendance and read the Commission’s statement of purpose
and vision. Chair Poutré called on Project Manager Bell Reza to review the
guidelines for the meeting.

II. ACTION – Suspend the Rule Whereby the Commission’s Executive Committee
Sets the Commission Meeting Agenda for February 2021 | View Here
Commissioner Ann Bossler made a motion to approve, Commissioner
Rebecca Smith seconded the motion. The vote was unanimous; the motion
passed.

III. Non-agenda Public Comment |View Here

IV. Chair’s Reports | View Here

A. ACTION – February 26, 2021 Commission Meeting Minutes | View
Here
Commissioner Rebecca Smith made a motion to approve,
Commissioner Michael Brown seconded the motion. The vote was
unanimous; the motion passed.

https://youtu.be/TabkxQSuPPU
https://youtu.be/TabkxQSuPPU?t=3
https://youtu.be/TabkxQSuPPU?t=232
https://youtu.be/TabkxQSuPPU?t=388
https://youtu.be/TabkxQSuPPU?t=774
https://youtu.be/TabkxQSuPPU?t=788
https://youtu.be/TabkxQSuPPU?t=788


Page 2 of 2 
Minutes of Arts and Culture Commission Meeting, March 26, 2021  

V. Presentations | View Here

A. Ron Salisbury, San Diego Poet Laureate

B. Arts, Culture, and Creativity Month

VI. Committee Reports | View Here

A. Policy and Funding Committee | View Here
Chair Ann Bossler

B. Public Art Committee | View Here
Senior Public Art Manager Charles Miller

C. Advocacy and Outreach Committee |View Here
Committee Chair Tyler Hewes

D. Commissioner Engagement Ad Hoc Committee
Committee Chair Udoka Nwanna was not present

VII. Director’s Report | View Here
Executive Director Jonathon Glus

VIII. Adjourn – Commissioner Janet Poutré adjourned the meeting at 10:05 a.m.

https://youtu.be/TabkxQSuPPU?t=1116
https://youtu.be/TabkxQSuPPU?t=2103
https://youtu.be/TabkxQSuPPU?t=2106
https://youtu.be/TabkxQSuPPU?t=2294
https://youtu.be/TabkxQSuPPU?t=2337
https://youtu.be/TabkxQSuPPU?t=2633


COMMITTEE REPORT  

DATE ISSUED: April 20 2021 

ATTENTION: Commission for Arts and Culture 

SUBJECT: Fiscal Year 2022 Organizational Support Program and Creative Communities San Diego 
Request for Proposal Ranks 

REFERENCES: 1. List of FY22 Organizational Support Program Applicants and Ranks 
2. List of FY22 Creative Communities San Diego Applicants and Ranks
3. Appeal Letter - San Diego African American Museum of Fine Art
4. City of San Diego Council Policy 100-03, Transient Occupancy Tax

STAFF CONTACT: Karla Centeno, Arts and Culture Project Manager 

POLICY AND FUNDING COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION 

Recommend to the City of San Diego Mayor and City Council the request for proposal ranks for fiscal year 
2022, as follows: 

1. Recommend proposal ranks for Organizational Support Program, as submitted by Commission
for Arts and Culture Advisory Panels.

2. Apply the City of San Diego’s process for reviewing appeals to the fiscal year 2022 Creative
Communities San Diego appeal from the San Diego African American Museum of Fine Art
(appellant) and recommend if 1) the appeal is warranted; and 2) if the rank should be changed.

3. Recommend proposal ranks for Creative Communities San Diego funding categories, as
submitted by Commission for Arts and Culture Advisory Panels.

BACKGROUND 

The City of San Diego (City) issued the Request for Qualifications (RFQ) for fiscal Year 2022 
Organizational Support Program (OSP) and Creative Communities San Diego (CCSD) funding categories 
on October 12, 2020. One hundred eighty-seven (187) nonprofit organizations submitted an application 
in response to the RFQ. Of those applicants, one hundred eighty-seven (187) were deemed financially 
qualified to hold a contract with the City and invited to submit a proposal in response to the Request for 
Proposal (RFP). Qualified applicants under contract with the City for fiscal year 2021 OSP and CCSD 
funding were able to elect between submitting a proposal and requesting that the City exercise the 
Option to Renew their agreement. The value to an existing OSP or CCSD contract holder in submitting a 
proposal is that the organization can update or refine organizational details such as program details and 
compete for a higher score than achieved in the past. In total, seventy-nine (79) eligible proposals were 
submitted in response to the RFP and ninety-eight (98) applicants requested and were granted the 
Option to Renew. Organizations who were granted the Option to Renew retain their ratified rank from 
the previous year. In January 2021, the Commission for Arts and Culture (Commission) appointed 
Commission Advisory Panels (Panels) to participate in the review of proposals received by the City for 
the fiscal year 2022 OSP and CCSD funding categories. Over a two-week period, panels convened in eight 
separate public meetings. Each panel evaluated a specific group of proposals using standard criteria and 
scoring. The panels also included a process allowing applicants to address the panel at two prescribed 
intervals-prior to and following the panel discussion of each applicant’s proposal. After evaluation of all 
proposals and scoring, each panel voted to recommend ranks for their specific group of proposals. The 
lists included with this report show all qualified applicants, including the recommended ranks provided 
by the fiscal year 2022 panels and ranks retained by applicants who were granted the Option to Renew. 

https://docs.sandiego.gov/councilpolicies/cpd_100-03.pdf


 

 
As stated in the Fiscal Year 2022 OSP Funding Guidelines and Fiscal Year 2022 CCSD Funding Guidelines, 
any organization that received a rank of 2+ or below, will not be recommended for funding. Per the 
guidelines: “Any applicant not recommended to receive a contract award may submit a written appeal to 
staff no later than 5:00 p.m. on the tenth calendar day following notification from staff to the applicant 
that no award is being recommended. Staff will review the appeal and present it to the Commission for 
review and recommendation to the City. The City will make the final ruling.”  The San Diego African 
American Museum of Fine Art was awarded a final rank of 2+ by the panel and has submitted an appeal.  
The San Diego African American Museum of Fine Art’s appeal letter is attached to this report.  
 
On April 9, 2021, the Policy and Funding Committee discussed the OSP and CCSD ranks and the appeal. 
After the discussion, the committee voted 5-0-0 to recommend to the Commission the request for 
proposal ranks for fiscal year 2022 for OSP and CCSD, as submitted by the Commission Advisory Panels 
and did not recommend any changes to The San Diego African American Museum of Fine Art’s rank. 
 
NEXT STEPS 

The Commission will receive and vote to recommend the proposal ranks to the Mayor and City Council. 
Commission staff will use recommended ranks as one factor in the calculation of each applicant’s 
contract award amount. Using the standard award algorithm as stated in the Fiscal Year 2022 OSP 
Funding Guidelines and Fiscal Year 2022 CCSD Funding Guidelines, any organization who received a rank 
of 2+ or below, will not be recommended for funding. Tentative award amounts will be publicized as they 
are available, and final award amounts will be announced by June 30, 2021, all contingent on available 
funds in the adopted Fiscal Year 2022 City budget. 
 
 
 
 















 
Page 1 of 4 

 
 

C O M M I T T E E   R E P O R T 
        
  
DATE ISSUED:  April 22, 2021 
 
ATTENTION: Commission for Arts and Culture 
 
SUBJECT: Intersection Mural Proposal from Downtown San Diego Partnership: We 

Are Cortez by Phoebe Cornog and Roxy Prima 
 
REFERENCES: 1) Mural Application from Downtown San Diego Partnership  

2) San Diego Municipal Code Section 26.0722 – Control of Artworks 
3) Administrative Regulation 95.00 – Management of the Civic Art 
Collection 
4) Commission for Arts and Culture Department Instruction 1.00 – 
Collection Management Policy for the Civic Art Collection 

 
STAFF CONTACT: Charles G. Miller, Senior Public Art Manager 
 
 
PUBLIC ART COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 
Recommend that the Executive Director of the Commission for Arts and Culture approve the 
intersection mural titled We Are Cortez consisting of a mural by artists Phoebe Cornog and 
Roxy Prima for temporary exhibition within the traffic intersection of Third Avenue and 
Cedar Street in Cortez Hill, Downtown, for up to a five-year period. 
 
SUMMARY: 
Commission staff has received a mural application for an intersection mural from the 
Downtown San Diego Partnership (Applicant). The Applicant is proposing an intersection 
mural by San Diego-based artists Phoebe Cornog and Roxy Prima. The mural is proposed for 
installation within the intersection of Third Avenue and Cedar Street in Cortez Hill, 
Downtown and would be 32’ x 32’ square. Commission staff evaluated the application 
utilizing criteria contained in the City of San Diego Commission for Arts and Culture Department 
Instruction - Collection Management Policy for the Civic Art Collection. The results of the 
Commission staff’s analysis include: 
 

RE: ARTWORK CRITERIA 
 

Public Safety:  If the mural is painted and installed properly within the proposed 
location of the traffic intersection (i.e. City approved methods and materials safe for 
the public) it is unlikely to pose hazards or threats to public safety or public health 
and/or are unlikely to pose a potential liability for the City in any other way.  

 
Cost: The Applicant would be solely responsible for funding the intersection mural.  
This includes, but is not limited to, insurance, permitting, site preparation, 
transportation, installation, maintenance, repair, restoration, conservation, 
deinstallation, removal, site restoration and clean-up.  

 

http://docs.sandiego.gov/municode/MuniCodeChapter02/Ch02Art06Division07.pdf
https://www.sandiego.gov/sites/default/files/legacy/arts-culture/pdf/AR95.00.pdf
https://www.sandiego.gov/sites/default/files/legacy/arts-culture/pdf/AR95.00.pdf
https://www.sandiego.gov/sites/default/files/legacy/arts-culture/pdf/DI1.00.pdf
https://www.sandiego.gov/sites/default/files/legacy/arts-culture/pdf/DI1.00.pdf


 
Page 2 of 4 

Availability of Resources: City staff is available to provide administrative services to 
the Applicant to process the application and execute a temporary artwork  
maintenance and removal agreement. 
 
Relevance: The mural would provide an aesthetic and cultural experience for 
residents and visitors to Cortez Hill and activate and enhance the area surrounding 
the intersection of Third Avenue and Cedar Street. Due to the placement of the mural 
at a busy intersection that is active with vehicles and pedestrians, the mural will 
serve to balance urbanization and development with humanizing elements. The mural 
may stimulate discussion and the exchange of ideas about art and the neighborhood 
due to the highly visible location. 

 
Excellence: The proposed mural exemplifies an acceptable level of artistic merit and 
quality of workmanship. 

 
Significance: Not applicable.  
 
Condition: Not applicable. 

 
Maintenance: The Applicant will be responsible for maintenance, conservation, 
restoration, and repair of the mural for the duration of the exhibit period.  
 
Security: Not applicable.   

 
Relationship to Site: The mural is to be sited on the pavement within the intersection 
of Third Avenue and Cedar Street. The mural would serve to activate this busy 
intersection. 

 
Legal and Ethical Considerations: If the mural is authorized, it will be formalized in a 
temporary artwork maintenance and removal agreement between the Applicant and 
the City. The artists have provided a royalty-free license to reproduce images of the 
artwork for non-commercial purposes and waiver of rights conferred under the 
Visual Artists Rights Act and California Art Preservation Act.  
 
Timing: If the mural is authorized, the Applicant will be responsible for proposing a 
date for mural installation and commencing work in compliance with the agreement 
between the Applicant and the City. 
 
Selection Process for the Artist: The artists were chosen for the project by the 
Applicant.  The artists are being compensated by the Applicant for their participation 
in the project. 
 
Community Feedback: The Applicant collected a letter of support for the project from 
the Cortez Hill Active Residents Group (CHARG). A mural was a recommendation from 
a 2019 pedestrian study conducted by CHARG. 
 
Restrictions: Not applicable. 
 
Commemorative Significance: Not applicable. 
 
Fair Exchange: Not applicable. 
 
Fair Purchase Price: Not applicable. 

 



 
Page 3 of 4 

RE: SITE SELECTION CRITERIA 
 
Ownership: The proposed site of the mural is in the City’s public right-of-way. The 
Applicant provided signed consent forms from all adjacent property owners.  

 
Public Safety:  If the mural is painted and installed properly within the proposed 
location of the traffic intersection (i.e. City approved methods and materials safe for 
the public) it is unlikely to pose hazards or threats to public safety or public health 
and/or are unlikely to pose a potential liability for the City in any other way. The 
Applicant would be required to submit plans to the City’s Development Services 
Department for review and approval and obtain all permits to close the intersection 
and install and maintain the private encroachment in the public-right-of-way.   
 
Security: Not applicable.  

 
Maintenance: Traffic intersections are managed by the Street Division of the City’s 
Transportation and Storm Water Department. However, the Street Division only 
maintains standard public right-of-way elements. 
   
Accessibility: Not Applicable. 
 
Context:  The mural is to be sited on the intersection of Third Avenue and Cedar 
Street. The mural will serve to further activate this busy intersection and the 
surrounding neighborhood.  
 
Support of City Departments:  Commission staff consulted with relevant City 
departments to confirm eligibility for the proposed site and will route the mural 
proposal with the analysis and recommendation from the Commission to relevant 
City departments for any additional feedback and recommendations about the 
proposal.   

 
Community Support: The Applicant collected a letter of support for the project from 
the Cortez Hill Active Residents Group (CHARG). A mural was a recommendation from 
a 2019 pedestrian study conducted by CHARG. 
 
Adherence to Relevant Plans: The City adheres to existing community plans and land 
use plans, such as the City’s General Plan.  
 

On April 2, 2021, the Public Art Committee evaluated the application utilizing the artwork 
and site selection criteria contained in the City of San Diego Commission for Arts and Culture 
Department Instruction - Collection Management Policy for the Civic Art Collection and voted (7-0-
0) to recommend to the City of San Diego Commission for Arts and Culture (Commission) 
that the Executive Director of the Commission approve the intersection mural titled We Are 
Cortez consisting of a mural by artists Phoebe Cornog and Roxy Prima for temporary 
exhibition within the traffic intersection of Third Avenue and Cedar Street in Cortez Hill, 
Downtown, for up to a five-year period. 
 
The Executive Director of the Commission will consider the recommendation from 
Commission staff, other relevant City staff, the Public Art Committee, the Commission, and 
any other pertinent stakeholders before making the final decision on whether to authorize 
the proposed mural. 
 
FISCAL CONSIDERATIONS: 



 
Page 4 of 4 

Should this mural be authorized for temporary installation, the Applicant will be responsible 
for all costs. 
 




















	4.23.21_Commission Agenda_UPDATED_Final_.pdf
	3.26.21_Commission Meeting Minutes_.pdf
	FINAL_4-23-21 P+F Report Packet.pdf
	FINAL_4-23-21 P+F Report .pdf
	4-23-21 P&F report packet.pdf

	DTP Cortez Hill Intersection Mural PAC Report to Commission_For Packet.pdf
	PAC Report to Commission_DTP Cortez Hill Intersection Mural
	C O M M I T T E E   R E P O R T
	DATE ISSUED:  April 22, 2021

	Staff Report to PAC_For Packet
	cortez app for report
	5-7_Pandr_CortezHill_FinalDesign_Page_1
	5-7_Pandr_CortezHill_FinalDesign_Page_2
	5-7_Pandr_CortezHill_FinalDesign_Page_3
	5-7_Pandr_CortezHill_FinalDesign_Page_4
	5-7_Pandr_CortezHill_FinalDesign_Page_6





